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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The Members of 
Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited ("the 
Company"}, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ("the Financial Statements"}. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss 
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"} specified under 
section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

4. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report 

5. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not covert he other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

6. In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 
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Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements 

7. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, 
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian accounting standards ("Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements that give a true and fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

8. In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Aud it or's responsibilities for the audit of the Fin a ncia l Statements 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expect ed to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

11.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

11.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and t he operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
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11.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

11.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current year and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Other matters 

15. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 were not audited by us. 
These financial statements have been audited by another auditor, whose report dated 26 April 2021 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion on the Financial 
Statement is not modified in respect of t his matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable. 

17. As required by Section 143(3) of t he Act, we report that: 

17 .1. We have sought and obtained all the information and exp lanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

17.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examinat ion of those books. 
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17.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account. 

17.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

17.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

17.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B". 

17.7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

18. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

18.1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its 
financial position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 38 to the Financial Statements; 

18.2. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

18.3. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

18.4. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (" Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has 
come to our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement. 

18.5. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our 
notice that such representation contains any material misstatement. 
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18.6. The Company has not paid and I or declared dividend during the year. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

-/:;f7 
Vinit KJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 
UDIN: 22145911AHTNYZ2861 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors' report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Referred to in paragraph "17.6" under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 

report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv 
Direct Limited ("the Company") as at 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 

Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 

31March2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the 

Guidance Note"). 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

3. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financi al controls 

based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essent ial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial cont rols that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparat ion of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act . 

Auditor's responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wit h the Guidance 

Note and the Standards on Auditing ("SA") , prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, t o the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated 

effectively in all materi al respects. 

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to the Financial St atements and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial cont rols wi t h reference t o the Financial Statements included obtaining an 
underst anding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing t he risk 

t hat a materi al weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on t he auditor's judgement, 

including t he assessment of the risks of materi al misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

6. We believe t hat the audit evidence w e have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

7. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai l, accu rately and 

fairly re flect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial 
Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with refe rence to the Financia l 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contro ls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to futu re periods are subject to 

the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with t he policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

fl?' 
VinitKJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 
UDIN : 22145911AHTNYZ2861 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Referred to in paragraph 16 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
of even date) 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative det ails 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE"). 

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are 
verified every year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, all PPE 
were physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other 
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Bena mi Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45of1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company is in business of distribution of financial products through digital means and does not 
have any physical inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(i i)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to it. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does 
not have sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions which are secured on 
the basis of any security. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicab le to 
it. 

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
made investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liabi lity Partnerships or any 
other parties during the year including other parties covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not 
granted any loans covered, made any investments or provided any guarantees and securities under 
Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year 
in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the provision of 
clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts 
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services Tax, provident fund , employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the 
year 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of 
customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, which have 
not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority on account of any dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on t he basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm t hat we have not come across any 
transactions not recorded in t he books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. (a) ln our opinion, the Company did not have any outstanding loans or other borrowings to financial 
institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders. 

(b) According to t he information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 
we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of term loans, during the year. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and 
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

x. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offerorfurther public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
made any preferential allotment/ private placement of shares / fully / partly / optionally convertible 
debentures during the year. 

xi. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no 
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during the 
year. 

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub
section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year. 
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xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with Sections 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. The provision of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is 
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system 
and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provision of clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. and 
hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 
obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given t o us, in the group (in accordance with Core 
Investment Companies (CIC's) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 16 companies forming part 
of the promoter/promoter group of the Company which are ClCs. Further, as informed these CIC's 
are unregistered Cl Cs as per Para 9.1 of Notification No. RBl/2020-21/24 dated 13th Au gust 2020 of 
the Reserve Bank of India. 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. The amount of cash loss is Rs. 55.01 crore (preceeding financial year Rs.18.71 crore). 

xviii. During the year, M/s S R BC & Co LLP, the Statutory auditors of the Company have resigned with 
effect from 27 October, 2021. As informed, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised 
by the said outgoing auditors. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realization offinancial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying t he financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertai nty exists 
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at t he date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that th is is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 40001 3, India 
T: + 912261437333 E: info@kkcllp.inW: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN-AAP-2267 

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Bui lding, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001 , India 



Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
C hartered Accountant s 

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the provision of CSR is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the 
provision of clause 3{xx)(a} and 3(xx)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xxi. Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/Wl00621 

~ 
Vinit KJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 

UDIN: 22145911AHTNYZ2861 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 
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BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31MARCH2022 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets under development 

Other financial assets 

Other non-current assets 

Current assets 

Financial assets 

Investments 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 

Other current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity share capital 

Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Other equity 

Total equity 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 

Provisions 

Total equity and liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report of even date 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

VinitK Jain 
Partner 

ICAI Membership Number: 145911 

i\11\lMBflI 25 April 2022 

Note 

"No. 

3 

3 

3 

5 

6 

4 

7 

8 

5 

6 

9 

10 

II 

15 

13 

15 

14 

15 

16 

12 

2 

In~ crore 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

31 .60 10.80 

72.91 66.86 

0.35 0.78 

2.46 1.36 

3.82 1.33 

11 l.14 81.13 

527.56 21.09 

32.62 40.87 

38.08 2.60 

1.37 -
2.74 1.56 

17.74 8.85 

620.11 74.97 

731.25 156.10 

3.12 2.50 

803.41 176.10 

(153.56) (69.38) 

652.97 109.22 

14.21 2.56 
. -

14.21 2.56 

6.42 2.06 

2.34 0.23 

6.34 4.34 

39.40 15.49 

8.82 21.83 

0.75 0.37 

64.07 44.32 

731.25 156.10 

Oo?W'd ofOi"'}/ 
lhl"h " ' It ~; 

Di rec lo D irecto r 
• 

~ 
Anshuman Mishra 

Head Finance 



BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

(I) 

(II) 

(III) 

(IV) 

(V) 

(VI) 

(VII) 

(VIII) 

(IX) 

(X) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income (1+11) 

Expenses 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit/ (loss) before tax (III-IV) 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

Profit/ (loss) for the period (V-VI) 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 

Tax impact on above 

Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) (Vll+VIll) 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Basic and diluted Earnings per share (in ~) 

(Nominal value per share' 10) 

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report of even date 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105146W/Wl00621 

VinitKJain 

Partner 

ICAI Membership Number: 145911 

f'\UMSf11: · 25 April 2022 

Note No. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 

In ~ crore 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

203 .13 100 30 

4.21 I 33 

207.34 101.63 

125.50 66.76 

1.26 0,56 

32.58 25 58 

135.59 53 02 

294.93 145.92 

(87.59) (44.29) 

- -

- -
. -

(87.59) (44.29) 

0.91 3.38 
. -

0.91 3.38 

(86.68) (40.91) 

(349.41) (177.16) 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

~~ 
Di re Director 

• 

Anshuman Mishra 

Head Finance 



BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2022 

Particulars 

I. Operating activities 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Ad.lusl111 c11 1s for. 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Remeasurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans 
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of assets 
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of financial instruments 
Interest expense on fair valuation of deposits 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Securities premium reserve 
Share based payments resel'Ve 
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

Cash from operation before working capital changes 

Workh1 14 cnuitnl chnngc& 
(Increase )/decrease in trade receivables 
(Increase )/decrease in loans and advances 
(Increase )/decrease in trade payables 
Increase/( decrease) in current financial liabilities 
Increase/( decrease) in other current liabilities 
Increase/( decrease) in provisions 

Income-tax paid including tax deducted at source (net of refunds) 
Net cash (used)/generated in operating activities (A) 

Carried forward 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

(87.59) 

(32.58) 
(0 91) 
0.06 
3-51 

(0.18) 
(1.26) 
(2.07) 
(5.42) 
0.31 

(38.54) 
(49.05) 

8.25 
(19.02) 

4.11 
23.91 

(13.01) 
0.38 

4.62 
(l.19) 

{45.62) 

(45.62) 

In ir crore 

31 March 2021 

(44.29) 

(25.58) 
(3.38) 
0,07 
0.65 

(0.10) 
(0 ,56) 

(2.67) 
(0.07) 

(31.64) 
(12.65) 

(33,27) 
(1.51) 
(0.78) 
0.91 

20.52 
(1.64) 

(15.77) 
2.70 

{25.72) 

(25 .72) 



BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2022 

Particulars 

II. Investing activities 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Sales proceeds of property, plant and equipment 
Purchases/internal development to intangibles 
Sale of current investments 
Purchase of current and long-tern1 investments 

Brought forward 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 

III. Financing activities 

Loan from holding company 
Proceeds from issue of share capital 
Payment of lease liability 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year [Refer note 8] 

31 March 2022 

(10.63) 
1 09 

(30 10) 
365.30 

(867.93) 

627.31 
0.61 

(4.55) 

For the year ended 

(45.62) 

{542.27) 

623.37 

35.48 
2.60 

38.08 

31 March 2021 

(2.89) 
0.57 

(21.40) 
117.71 

(116.95) 

51.10 

(2.33) 

Inf crore 

(25.72) 

(22.96) 

48.77 

0.09 
2.51 
2.60 

As per our report of even date On behalfofthe Board of Directors 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

!CAI Firm Registration Number: 105146W/WI00621 

VinitKJain 

Partner 

!CAI Membership Number: 145911 

Mllr\\Bf\'I.: 25 April 2022 

Rakesh nl l. 

• Dir • 

f hal 
EO 

w 
he 

1 ector 

~ 
Anshu 111on Mishra 

I-lend Finance 



BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2022 

A. Equity share capital 

Parliculars 

Al the beginning of the year 

Changes in equily share capilal during the year 

Balance as at 31March2022 

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Pa11iculars 

At the beginning of the year 

Addition during the year 

Balance as al 31Mm·ch2022 

C. Other equity 

Current year 

Pa11icula1'S 

Retained earnings 

At the beginning of the year 

Received during the year 

Profit/ (loss) for the year 

Recognition of share based payments to employees 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

Balance as at 31 Ma1•ch 2022 

Previous year 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 

At the beginning of lhe yenr 

Received during the year 

Profit/ (loss) for the year 

Recognition of share based payments to employees 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

Balance HS at 31 March 2021 

Summaiy of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In tenns ofour report of even date 

Fo1• Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Fi1m RegislTalion Number: l05146W/Wl00621 

Vin ii K Jain 
Partner 
!CAI Membership Number: 145911 

MUMBRT.: 25 April 2022 

Note No. 

9 

Note No. 

10 

Note No. 

11 

Note No. 

11 

2 

Inf crore 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

2.50 2 50 

0 62 

3.12 2.50 

In' crore 

Year ended Year ended 
31March2022 31March2021 

176.10 125.00 

627 3 I 51.10 

803.41 176.10 

Reserves and surplus 

Share based 
Securilies premium Rehtined earnings 

payments 1·ese1-ve 

(71.70) 2.32 

2 07 

(87 59) 

0.43 

0 91 

2.07 (158.38) 2.75 

Reserves and surplus 

Share based 
Secul'ities pl'emium Retained earnings 

payments 1·eserve 

. (30.79) 1.34 

. 
(4429) 

. 0 98 

3 38 

(71.70) 2.32 

On behalf of the Boai d of Directors 

Inf crore 

Total other equity 

(69.38) 

2 07 

(87 59) 

0.43 

0 91 

(153.56) 

In' crore 

Total othe1· equily 

(29.45) 

(4429) 

0 98 

3 38 

(69.38) 

~ ) 

~Sath~ 
Director 

Anshuman Mishra 

Head Finance 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Corporate information 
Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (the "Company") is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on 
7 February 2014 and started commercial operation on I July 2018. The Company is engaged in business of 
distribution of financial products through digital means. The Company is registered with Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) as a composite Corporate Agent for distributing 
life insurance and general insurance products in India and also is a Registered Investment Advisor (RIA) 
under SEBI regulations. The Company's registered office is at Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai
Pune road, Pune, Maharashtra, India. The parent of the Company is Bajaj Finserv Ltd (hereinafter referred 
to as "Holding Company" or "parent"). 

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 
25 April 2022. 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 

Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read together with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions 
of the Act, on an accrual basis. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and 
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value or amortized book value. 

The financial statements are presented in{, which is also the Company's functional currency and all the 
values are rounded off to the nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Act. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current 
or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

Significant accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated. 

1) Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions 

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements and disclosures 
made therein are based upon Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of 
the date of the financial statements, which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. 
The following are items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about 
each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with information about basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements: 

a) Provision for employee benefits 
b) Provision for tax expenses 
c) Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment 
d) Valuation of investments. 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

2) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS I 09 Financial Instruments are applicable) is 
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from 
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising 
from contracts with customers. 

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set 
out in Ind AS 115: 

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract 
Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, 
i.e. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation 1s 
transferred to the customer. 

a) Revenue from sale of services 

i) Income from distribution of financial products 
Income from distribution of financial products is earned by selling of services and products 
of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so earned is recognised on 
successful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of 
its recovery. 

ii) Income from manpower supply services 
Income from manpower supply services is recognized as and when services are rendered and 
it becomes due on contractual terms with the parties. 

iii) Income from providing software services 
Income from providing software services is recognized after the services are rendered and 
they become due on contractual terms. 

iv) Income from sale of value added services 
The Company recognizes Income from sale of value added services on rendering of services. 

b) Other income 
The Company recognises income on accrual basis. 

3) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation I amortisation 

A. Property, plant and equipment 

i) Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition capable of operating in the manner intended. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the plant and equipment, if the recognition criteria are met. When 
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

ii) An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

iii) T.he residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

B. Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

1. a. Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis on straight line method to allocate the 
cost, net of residual value over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
b. Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an estimated 
economic useful life shorter than that of its corresponding asset, the component is 
depreciated over its shorter life. 

ii. Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis from the month of such 
additions. 

m. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided 
upto the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished. 

C. Intangible assets and amortization thereof 

Intangible assets, representing softwares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment. 

Expenditure incurred on development of internally generated intangible assets, is recognised as 
an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such 
know-how are probable to flow ~o the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured 
reliably. 

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of five years, 
which is the Management's estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

4) Investments and financial assets 

(i) Classification 

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, 
or through profit or loss), and 

• those measured at amortised cost. 

The classification is done depending upon the company's business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets classified as "measured at fair value", gains and losses will either be recorded in profit 
or loss or other comprehensive income, as elected. For assets classified as "measured at 
amortised cost", this will depend on the business model and contractual terms of the cash flows. · 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(ii) Measurement 

Initial Measurement 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value including, in the 
case of "a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss", transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at "fair value through profit or loss" are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for 
managing the financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. There are two 
measurement categories into which the company classifies its financial instruments: 

Subsequently measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest 
are measured at amortised cost e.g. Debentures, Bonds etc. A gain or loss on a financial asset that 
is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in investment income using the effective interest rate method. 

Subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets that do not meet 
the criteria for amortised cost, are measured at fair value through profit or loss e.g. investments in 
mutual funds. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. 

The Company has designated investments in mutual funds as at FVTPL. Debt instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the profit and loss. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
financial assets carried at amortised cost for e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables 
and bank balances. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on 
trade receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit 
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 
expected life ofa financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as 
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head 
'other expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various 
financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured at amortised cost and revenue receivables: ECL is presented as 
an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance 
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off 
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying 
amount. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial 
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an 
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely 
basis. 

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognised only when Company has transferred the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset or the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have 
expired. Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, 
the financial asset is derecognised. 

5) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, and in case of loans and borrowings, payables, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company 
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments. · 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. 
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk 
are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the 
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity . All otl . in fair value of 
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any 
financial liability as at fair value through profit arid loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
This category generally applies to borrowings. 

De recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

6) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets are tested for impairment at each reporting date and also whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

7) Employee benefits 

a) Privilege leave entitlements 
Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of 
service, as per the rules of the Company. The liability for accumulated leave which can be 
availed and/or encashed at any time during the tenure of employment is recognized using the 
projected unit credit method at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The 
liability for accumulated leave which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year is 
provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed leave balance as at the balance sheet 
date. 

b) Gratuity 
Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity 
fund, which fully covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). 
However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC and BALIC as compared to the liability on 
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the 
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projected unit credit method in conformity with the principles and manner of computation 
specified in Ind AS 19. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Employee stock option scheme 

The fair value of options granted under the Bajaj Finserv Limited -Employee Stock Option 
Scheme (BFS-ESOS) is recognised as an employee benefits expenses with a corresponding 
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of 
the options granted: 

• including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity's share price) 
• excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions (e.g., 

continuance of an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and 
• including the impact of any non-vesting conditions 

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the 
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its 
estimates of number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and 
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit 
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

d) Defined contribution plans 
The Company contributes to two defined contribution plans for its employees: 

Contribution to provident fund is made to Government Provident Fund Authority 
Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund 
Authority 

The Company recognises contribution payable to these fund/ schemes as an expenditure, when an 
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable 
to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the 
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance 
sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for 
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

8) Taxes 

a) Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961; and the Income 
Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

b) Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
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applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. 

c) Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is 
settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses 
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 
differences. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority. 

9) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a 
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage ohime is recognised as a finance cost. 

10) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

i) Right-of-use assets 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost 
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, 
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost 
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated usin t estimated useful life of 
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The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in para 6. 
Impairment of non-financial assets. 

ii) Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value 
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, ifthe lease term 
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend 
on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in 
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate 
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying 
asset. 

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of 
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value 
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease 
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term. 

11) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

12) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and all periods 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity 
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in 
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

13) Foreign currency translation 
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Transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of 
exchange ruling at the date .of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional 
currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non-trading 
activities are taken to other income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
spot exchange rates as at the date ofrecognition. 

14) Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

The Company has set policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value 
measurement of financial assets, which includes valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 
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J Prnpcrh'. plnnt nd cquipmurt 

Current year 

Gross block 
h .at Additions Deductions I As at 

1 Apnl l!Ul ad_iusbnents 31 Mmeh2022 

A.(},\.11Assetll: 
Leasehold improvement! 4.05 4 05 

Computers 2.83 431 047 6 67 

Electric fittings/equipments 0.46 0 05 0 51 

Furniture 0.95 0 02 0 97 

Office equipment 1.92 0 50 2.42 

Vehicles 4,52 5.75 1 64 8 63 

B. Leased Asset! : 
Right of Use asset rBuilding (Refer Note 35)1 7.97 19.30 2727 

Total 22.70 29.93 2.11 5052 
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Website 105,91 3053 13644 

Tot.o.l 105:.91 10.£3 136.+I 

Intangible assets under development 0.78 0.61 1.04 OJS 
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Previous year 

A. Own Assets : 
Leasehold improvements 

Computen 

Electric fittings 

Furniture 

Office equiPrn.ent 

Vehicles 

B. Leased A•sets : 
Right of Use asset [Building (Refer Note 35)] 

lntan~ble BHets : 

Website 

Intangible assets under development 

~ntangible 8..'lsets under development 

To1!1.1 

Total 

A .. t 
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1.76 

3,56 
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0.78 
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0_95 
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Total 

0.78 
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0.44 
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Accumu.1..Bted de~reciation 
For the Deductions 
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0 10 
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2 00 
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Jn f crore 
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4 Investments 

lm>estment in Muluid Funds 

lm'cstmenls at Fair rnlue through profit and loss 
223479 467 (JI March 2021 :NIL) Nippon India Liquid Fund 
360299 462 (JI March 2021 :NIL) L&T Mutual Fund 
3090% 564 (31 March 2021 :NIL) SBI Liquid Mutual Fund 
260545 234 (31 March 2021 :NIL) UTI Liquid Cash Plan 
133063 669 (31 March 2021 :NIL) Kolak Liquid Mutual Fund 
213955.477 (31 March 2021 :848J8_892) IDFC Liquid Mutual Fund 

Aggregi1tc hook \'alue or 'JUOled imeslmcnl!l 

All im Clllmcnf!l menllonetl HhO\'e a~ wilhin lntlh1 

S Other financial nssets 
(Unset:ured, good, unless stilled othem·ise) 

Security dcposil 

6 OLl.1r1• nutl.t 
(Unu: (m•trJ, ll:• l<l rJ , ' 11 1 la~ 1j1it 1I 11d 1llf'l\ IW) 

/Ul\'llOCC'i rt:eoY(!l",.dil t 111 C'IUlh c1r· l1ln1I 
Ad\'81\ixs to related par1ies 
Unsecured considered Aood 
Doubtful 

Provision for doubtful ad\'anoes 

GST input tax cmlil 
Graluity (refer nolc 27) 
Other receivable 

Note: A<h'Bnccs to related par1ics conlribute lo 96,86% of total ad\-ances as on March 31. 2022 (March 31, 2021: 93 55%) 

7 Trade receivables 
(UnJccured, con1ldeRd good, unless slated olhernbe) 

Receivables 
- lo~'ID'Js tlistribulion ofthirtl pu1y protllll:lli 

• 1mliu rr.JJ ld l ~rn'111 .. l ii.111t11!._"1 '\-kol 

~ lowenb ma11powcr supply services 
- ..i.on 

Con Incl balancrs 

Trade receivables 

N OO ofU l'r\'111 

t\Jtll l 

31 Much2022 31Murch2021 

lnlPcrore In IP er~ 

2 46 1_36 

l,46 ],J6 

Non- Current 
As at 

Jl March2022 31 Morch 2021 
lnlPcroni lnlPcrore 

3 82 1.33 
3.82 1.33 

Current 

"' 
31Murch2022 31 Murch2021 

lnlPcrore lnlPcrore 

116 J(1 

105 03 
IOJ 02 
90 88 
57 26 
55 OJ 21.09 

527.56 21.09 

527.56 21.09 

Ct11'f\!.'1t 

All Ht 

31 Merch2022 31 M•rch2021 

In IPcrore In IPcrore 

1 37 

1.37 

Currenl 
A111t 

Jl Mu~h 2022 JI M1rch 2021 
lnlPcrore lnlPcrore 

1.85 1.16 
0.06 0.08 

I 91 l.24 

L91 1.24 

o.47 
1 47 0 .45 

14_36 6,69 
17.74 ~Ul5 

Curren I 
As at 

JI March 2022 JI March 2021 
lnlPcrore lnlPcrore 

18 26 9.75 
8,57 28,56 
4 79 2.41 
J 00 0,15 

32.62 40.87 

A!11.I 
31 Man:h 2022 31 March 2021 

lnlPcrore lnlPcrore 

32 62 40,87 

Accounls recci\'able arc recognised when the riAhl to consideration becomes unconditional Contract liability rclales to payments receh"Cd in advance of pcrfonnance under lhe contract. 

No trade or olher ~ivablc are due from directors or olher officers of I he company either severally or jointly with any other person Nor any trade or oilier recei\'able are due from firms or private companies rcspccth'Cly in which any director is a 
1~ 1~ 1 1e r, It ~l n.11.'1ora1 1i1 111 a tol"tC 1 

Tnde nccivahlell ageing Khedulc 

31 Marth 2022 
Undisputed trade recei\'ahles - considem:I Aood 
Unbilled dues 

JI March 2021 
Undispuled lrade recci\'ablcs- considered good 
Unbilled dues 

8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 
on current accounts 

Not due 

32 22 

3541 

Oubtandlng for follow Ing periods rrnm due dale of paymenl 
Un lh11116 6 monltu - l year More th1m 1 year 

monlhs 

0 40 

5 46 

11rrcn1 

An.t 
JI M•rch2022 

lnlPcroni 

38.08 
38.08 

Toi el 

32.62 

40.87 

31 M1mh202J 
lnlPcrore 

2,60 
2.60 
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Asal 
JI Mu rch 2022 J1 Ma1ch 2021 

ln!Fcrore lnlFcrore 

Aulhnri~ct.I 

J5 00,000 equity shares or' Ill t.:ach (JI Mnrch 2021: 25 ,00,000 cqnit) shares or' 10 each) J5•t 250 

ls..~ucd, subscribctl and ru11, 1111id-u11 shi11 cs 
JI 20,000 cquil) shares or' JO each (JI March 202 J: 25 00,000 cquily shares ort IU each) Jl2 2 50 

J,12 2.50 

Terms/righls attached 1o equil~ sh:.1rcs 

TJ1c Co111pany has only ouc class orcquil) slrnrcs ha\ ing a par \aluc or ~ 10 per share Each holder or equity shares is cnlillcd lo one vole per share. The inlerim di\ idend declared by lhe Boord ofDircclors and 1l1c dividend proposed b) !he Boord or 
Directors and appro\ed b) lhe shareholders in I he ;rnnual genernl meeting is paid in Indian rupees In !he e\'cnt or liquidation or the Company, the holders or cquil) shares \\ill be enlitlcd to rccci\·e remaining asscls or the Compan), aner dis!ribution 
of all prercrenlial amounts The distribution \\ill be in proportiou to lhe number or cquil) shares held by !he shareholders, 

Delails of sh1m~holtlcn; holdine more lhan 5°/., shares in the Com11an)' 

Equil)' sharell of~ 10 c11ch fully 11aid 

Bajaj Finscrv Ltd. 
Baiai Finance Ltd 

Del ails of 1)J'omoler shareholdinf,\ 
Shares held by promoters at the end of lhe yc;1r 

Promolcr R1'mc 

Bajaj Finscn1 Lid 

10 Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Balance as at lhc bcgi1111ing orthc year 

Add: Addition during the )car 

Closing balance 

Nos. 

l!.011.1100 

As at 
Jl March 2022 
No~ 

25,00,000 
6 20,000 

A~ at 
Jl March 2022 

% Holding % Change dm'ing 
lhc ,·car 

80 ,13% -1987% 

% Holding 

80 IJ% 
1987% 

No!!. 

25.00.000 

Asal 
JI March 2021 

Nos. 

25.IJlUIO<> 

A~ al 
JI Nl:m:h 102 1 
% Holding 

100 00% 

A~ al 

% Holding 

100J l0% 

% Change during 
lh~ n:u 

J1 March 2022 31 M1u'l:h 2021 

ln!Fcrore ln!Fcrore 

176 10 

627 Jl 

fiOJ.41 

125 00 

51 JO 

176.IO 

Rcprescnls loon amount rccci\·cd b)' lhc Company from Bajaj Finscrv Limited ~ 522 94 crorc and Bajaj Finance Li mi led ~ 280 ,47 crorc Any loan amount which is outslanding al the end or the loan tenure is compulsorily conYcrtible into cquily 

shares 

1 l Other equity 

Rcscncs and surplull : 

Securities premium 
Balance as al Ilic bc~innin~ or the 'car 
Add: Rccci\-ed durin~ the ,·car 
B.t.ltulce j" :Kt.."Ufltlttt 1m.rmJum reKn'l:l 

Retained earnin.,, 
Balance as at lhe bc~innin~ of lhc year 
Profil/(loss) for the year 
Hems of olher comprehcnsiYc income TCCOAnised dircclly in retained earn in~ 

Achiarial .1!,ains/losscs or defined benefit plans 

Less: Appropriations 
Balance in relaiued earninAS 

Share biued l)ll)'mcnlll l"'CYCn'e 

ij.11111110: n" 111 1hobc'A1n nin~ of1 l.e'\cu 
RccoAnition of share based pavmenls lo employees 
&lance in share based pa,111ents reserve 

Srcurilics premium 

As ·a.t 
31 March 2022 JI March 2021 

ln!Fcrore ln!Fcrore - ----

2 07 
2 07 

(71 70) (30 79) 
(87 59) (44 29) 

() 91 338 

(158.38) (71 70! 

2 32 134 
0 43 0 98 
2 75 2 32 

(153.56) ~69.38} 

Sccurilics premium is used lo record lhe premium on issue or shares The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance\\ ith section 52 and other provisions or lhc Companies Act, 2013. 

Retained camin~~ 
Relaincd earnings represents the surplus in pmril and loss account and appropriations 
The Co111pa11v ~Anises chanAe on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilit)'·/(assel) as part or rclaincd earnings wilh separate disclosure, which comprises or: 
- acluarial .Aains and losses; 
- return on plan assets. excludinA amounls included in nel inlercsl on lhc ncl defined bcnefil liabililr/(asscl): and 
- anv chanAc in the cffccl of the asset ccilin~. excludin~ amounts included in net interest on the net defined bcnefil liability/(asscl) , 

Sh11re ba!ied pa)·menls rescn·e 
Sh.arc based payments reserve is created as required bv Ind AS I02 - 'Share Based Payments' 011 lhc Employee Stock Option Scheme 

12 Provisions 

Provision for cm1iloycc bencfils (See nole 271 

Provision for compensated absences 

Curren( 

Asal 

J1 M:.1n:h 2022 JI M11n:h 2021 

----':::" .!.' :::"•:::•:...e ln!Fcrore 

OJ75 0 J7 

0.75 O.J7 
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0 1.' 1'~1· 1'N I 10. l l~ l 1 illl l CA 

On account of timing diJTcrcncc in 
Rctiml nnd olhcr bcneflls: 

Defined benefit plan' pro\ isions - OCI 

Financial i11strumenls : 

f air valuation of mutual funds including FMP 

Grou deferrtd lax li~blllliet 

Dcrcrttt11ua.uds 

Recognized 10 the cxlenl ofDcfemd la:< liability 

Gl"OS.!I ddcrrctl lltl: a.ueh 

JI Marth 2022 JI M1uch 2021 

lnircrore In ircrore 

0,26 

0.111 002 

0 36 0 96 

0 .36 

0.)6 0 9(1 

The Company ofTsels lax a~1s and liabililics if and only If ii has a legally enforceable right to~ orr cumnt tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred lax a~ls and deferred lax Jiabililies relate to income laxes levied by the same lax 
authority Deferred lax assets are recognised for um~ la:< I~ lo the cxtenl that it is probable that taxable profil will be ayailable against which the losses can be utilised SigniCicanl management judgcmcnl is reqnircd 10 determine the amount of 
deferred tax a.uels that can be recognised, based upon the likely liming and lhe le\'cl of future taxable profits logcther wilh future tax planning strategics 

The Company hast' 15L63 cron:s (net of cxccplions if any) (March 31, 2021 : f 70 47 crorcs) tax losses brought fomard These losses relate to brought forward business losses and unabsorbed dcprecialion The Company neither has any taxable 
temporary dirTcrencc nor any tax planning opportunilics a,·ailablc that could par11)' support the n:cognilion of lhese losses as dcfc~ tax assets On this basis., 1he Company has dc1crmined I hat it cannot recognise dcrerrcd tax assets on the tax losses 
brought forward 

J4 T r lldt• 111ninhlH 

Tola) oul!landing dues or micro cntapriscs and small enterprises 

Toi.al oulstanding dues ofcmiilors olher than micro enlerprise6 and small enterprises 

Tntde pay~ble3 1gelng schedule 

Par1lcul11rs 

J l March 1022 

MSME 

Olhcll 

31March2021 

MSME 
Oihcrs 

15 Olht r flnanclal llahilifi<.< 

Lease liability [See note 351 
EmplO)'CC bcnents payable 

OOi<r pa)•blcs' 

Refer nole J2 for financial liabililies measured al amortised~ . 

•Oiher payables comprises of liability for expenses, salary payable and income received in ad\>ance 

16 Othel' cu1·rcnt liabilities 

Statulory dues payable 

Not due 

234 

603 

0_23 

4.28 

/\ t. 11 

JJ Man:h 2022 

lnir«ore 

2 34 

6 34 .... 

31 Mu"Ch 2021 

ln,crore 

0 23 

4 34 

4.S1 

Undisputed ouhhtndln& (or following (ICriods from due dale or payment 

Leu lh1n J year 1-2 )'CU'll 2-3 year1 Toi.al 

1.J.j 

0 31 6.34 

0,06 

Non~urrent 

A1111t 
31 MMn:h 2022 31 Marth 2021 

ln,crore ln,crore 

1421 2 56 

14.21 1.!!6 

Current 
A111t 

0.23 

4.H 

Jl Matth 2022 31 M1r'Ch 2011 

tnircrore 

642 

14 38 

1S 02 

45.81 

At. al 

31 March 2022 

lnircrore 

882 

8,81 

lnircroni 

2 06 

430 

11.19 

IUS 

31 March 2021 

Jn fe10re 

2183 

21.83 



811jaj Finserv Dirl'cl Limited 

Notes to linancial statements fol' the yenr ended 31 March 2022 

17 ltC"\'cnuc frum OJ)rr'11 lions 

Rc\enue from 011cnlions 

Ty11c or Sen ices 

Income from dislribolion orthinl party products 

Related parties' 

OthCrs 

RC\ cnuc from soO\\ arc services 

Manpower supply scrvkcs 

Sale or value added scn'ices 
Tola! reo.·cnuc from 011er1tllon!I 

• Includes insurance income f 2 J2 crore (J l March 2021 ~ 2 62 cron::) 

India 

Outside India 

Tol11I re\'enuc rrom orcralions 

Timing or rc,~nue recognition 

Services lransrr:rrcd Al a point in lime 

Services transferred o\'cr lime 

Tol11I rennuc rrom 011cralions 

18 Other income 

lntcresl on income lax refund 
Gain on valualion and gain on realisalion or mutual funds measured al FVTPL 
Others 
PtO\'bioo no IOmter ,,.,1uhct1 

19 Employee _ben eli t1 u ernse 

Salaries, wages and bonus 10 employees 

Contribulion 10 provident and other funds 

Sha~ based payment to employ1XS lSee nole 34) 

Starr welfa~ expenses 

20 Finllna <DSll 

Interest on lease liabilities [See note 35] 

21 Depreci11 rion and 11 mo11 isnl (on t xp t.rlic 

Dep~ialion on property. plant arul equipment 

Art1du111 lUllQt11Jcd eplut lt llU,;lblc: o~ 

[See nole J] 

For the ' 'C"ttr ended 

JI M1m:h 2022 JI M111rth 2021 

In 'crore 

10 1 ) ] 

0 75 

62 37 

37 29 

I 39 

203.13 

203 ~J 

203.JJ 

201 74 

I 39 

203.13 

ln,crore 

51 3J 

0 85 

19 59 

27 12 

I 4 I 

100,JO 

100 JO 

JOO.JO 

99 33 

0 97 

100,30 

31 Mirth 2021 31 Man:h 2021 
ln,crore ln,crore 

0 10 0 13 

3 82 0 57 
029 0 18 

0.45 

4.21 1.33 

For lhe ''"r ended 

31 March 1022 Jl Marth 2021 

ln,croni lnlcror11 

11 2 78 59,00 

4 83 3.84 

5 42 2,67 

2 47 1.25 

125.50 ... 76 

For the year ended 

31 Muth 2022 31 M11rth 2021 

ln,crore ln,crore 

I 26 0 56 

1.26 0.!16 

For lhc yc11r tnded 

31 Marth 2012 31 March 2021 

lnfcrore 

810 

24 48 

32.58 

In 'croni 

556 

2002 

25.58 



Bajaj Ji'inserv Direct Limiled 

Notrs lo linancial statements for the yea1' ended 31 March 2022 

22 Other expenses 

Ad\ertisement , brn11di11g and sales promotion 

lofor 11 1J1t 1011 T.::ol1oolog' ' o._:pc11M:$ 
Denier incc11th e 

Outsourcing I back office expenses 

Business support charges 

Professional and legal consultancy 

Subscription and fees 

Insurance 
Tran:lling expenses 

Repairs and maintenance 

Power. fuel. \later and consumables 

Training and conference 

Paymcnl to audilor 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Payment to nuditor 

As uudilor 

Audit fee 
Other services (certification fees and olhcr mauers) 

23 Tax ex ense 

(a) Tax expense 

Current 111.x 

Current lax on profils for the year 

Adjustmen1s forcum:nl tax of prior periods 

Tola! currcnl lax expense 

Dererrro tH 

Ocicu.cl~\lnc:n:.11.~ ) jn dcfar.&W LIL\ wacb 
(Dccrcasc)/incrcase in dcrerrcd lax liabili1ies 

Total defernd Lax cxpcnscsl(bcnefil) 

Tt1::icc::ic11en~ 

(b) Reconciliation ortax e::ic11ensc1111nd the accounllng profit mulliplicd by Indla'1 tu rate 

Prom before 1ax 

Tax at lhe Indian lax rale of26% (Previous year- 26%) 

Tax effect ofamounls which are deduciible (non taxable) in calculaling laxable incume: 

- Income from fair valuation ofnmlual funds 

TAX Cli:llCnSC 

24 Eaming.s Per Share (EPS) 

a Profit I (loss) for lhe vcar (f crorc) 
Weighted avcraAe number of shares outS!anding durinA the year (Nos) (Basic) 
WeiAhlcd a\'Crage number of shares outstanding durinA the year (Nos) (Diluted) 

b, Earnings per share 
Basic and Diluted { 
Face value per share f 

For the ) ({Ir ended 

31 Mon:h 2022 JI M11rth 2021 

ln,crore In 'crore 

65 i.14 17 67 

3511 17 13 

10 2J us 
10 58 0 69 

5 24 9 16 

2 00 0 80 

I 64 0 30 

I IH 0 65 

0 85 0.26 

0 89 0 77 
0 64 ll 56 

0 15 0.tl9 

0 11 0 02 

I 5.J OA7 

IJ~~S~ 5J,02 

For lhe year ended 

31 M11n:h 2022 JI Marth 2021 

0 10 

001 

0.11 

For the year ended 

00 1 

00 1 

0.02 

JJ March 2022 31 March 2021 

ln,crore 

(0 36) 

0 36 

(87 59) 

For lhe year ended 

ln,crore 

(0 96) 

0_96 

(4429) 

31 March 2022 JJ MHn:h 2021 

(87 59) 
25.06.795 

21.22,39.908 

(34941) 
JO 

(4429) 
25,00,000 

16.52.78.904 

(177 16) 
JO 

The Company has oulstanding loan which is compulsorily convertible into equi1v shares Since the potential equity shares arc anti-dilutive in nature, 1hev are not considered for lhe calculation of Diluted Earnings per share 

25 Capital commitments 

Capital oommitmenls 

- lowards acquisilion of Intangibles 

- towards acquisilion of Property, planl and equipments 

26 ExpendHure in foreign currency 

lnfonnalion technology expenses 

A111l 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

ln,croni ln,croni 

8(19 

0. 10 

8.19 

f.11rt hc. )-ctl"IC1Jlkd' 

3 02 

0 18 

J.20 

J1 March 2022 31 M11rch 2021 
ln,crore ln,crore 

2 19 15" 



Bajaj Flnserv Direct Limited 

Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

27 En1ployaa btrni:i flt s 

Liability for employee benelits has been determined by an actuary, appoinled for lhe purpose, in conformity with the principles set out in lhe Indian Accounting 
Slaridard 19 lhe delails of which are es hereunder 

Funded schemes 
Gratuity: 

The Company provides for gratuity payments to employees The gratuily benefit payable lo lhe employees of the Company is greater or the provisions of the Paymenl 
of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the Company's gratuity scheme Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are ellglble for gratuity The gratuity plan is 
a funded plan and the Company makes conlribulions to approved graluily fund 

Amount rcconnl:z.ed In Bal:incl! Shoal. 

P•~oi value or funded defined benefit obligation 
Fnl r value or plan assets 
Net funded oblimillon 
Present value of irnfunded defined bef\C l•I ob4fl.atloo 

1Amol.m1 not ~c.Dnnlzod due; tn auet llmlt 
N.c1 dofi11od boneflt liobilllv / lasseo reconnlxod' In bBJa.nce shoel 

EJcDGnse rcu: ooni:iod l" lho Slatament of orofil ll nd loss 

Outrot!L service cost 
lnlotuc.t on net defined benefil liablllty I (asset) 
Tolo l f:!Knf!nr;e t haroed 10 cnalomonl of ororitand Ion 

A1unur1t ~ciordecl as Olh1tr CDmnraharrnlva lnc:amo 

OpDnlng amount romgnli.:tU in OCI outside statement of profit and loss 
l~ofT)ell!lufl.lt'llMlt dmir1u the period due to 
Changes in financial assumptions 
Changes in demographlc assumptions 
Experience adjustments 
Actual return on plan es.sets less lnten:sl on plan assets 
Adjustment to recognize the effect of asset ceiling 

Claslnn a1notJ tt rctunnized l o OCI ouuldu slatume.ntof nrofll and Ion 

Reconc.Ui:aHoo or not liablfllv f In.nan 

Opening net defined benefit liabllity I (asset) 
Expense charged to statement or prom and loss 
Amount recognized outside slatemenl or profit end loss 
Employer contributions 
Impact of liabllily a~umed or (settled)'" 

Closina net defined benefit liabllltv I lasseO 

Movomcml in bonafll obllQAllon 

Opening of denned benefit oblfgalion 
Current service cost 
lnlerest on defined benelil obligation 
Remeasuremenls due lo: 

Actuarial loss I (gain) arising fmm change In financial assumptions 
Actuarial loss I (gain) arising lrom change In demographic assumptions 
Actuarial toss I (gain) arising on accounl of experience changes 

Benefrts paid 
Liabillties assumed I (sellledr 
Clo5ina of defined benefit obllaallon 
•On account or business camblnAttM or lnlarg.l'Oup lt'ifnsfer 

Movemant In ohrn aueta 

OpanlllQ rair value of plan es.sets 
E-mplo~ar contributions 
Interest on plan assels 
~ttmuasunf111-Gf1IS due to: 

Actual return on plan a55ets less lntemst on plan assets 
Si>nofa• paid 
l\>.slll< ~CGulred I (sellled)' 
CIO'liM !'Air value or Dian ass.etn 
• On AClCPl lnl of business comtM.1Y11lon or ln1erofoup rrao~tor 

( lo~ CIOIO) 
As tll 31 Marc h As al ~1 Mi'irch 

2022 1011 
Gratullv Ora1ultv, 

5 93 5 42 
(7 40) (5.••> 
11 .1171 IU71 

0.02 
11.471 ro.45 

111 1.63 
(0.05) o.oe 
1 OG 1.72 

(3,78) (OAO) 

0 01 0 36 
(O 80) (2.S2) 
(O 36) (118) 
0 06 (0.06) 

(0 02) 0.02 
14.G91 13.781 

AJ • I 31 March Al at J1 March 
2022 2011 

(0.45) 1,63 
1.06 1.72 

(O.Q1) (3.38) 
(1.48) (0.42) 
0 29 

11 471 I0.45) 

As at 31 March As at 31 March 

2022 2021 

5 42 5.18 
111 1.83 
0 35 0 35 

0 01 0 38 
(0 80) (2..52) 
(036) (118) 
(029) (0 03) 
0 21l 1 63 
5 93 5.42 

ASllll :Jt Much A! at J1 Mtm:h 
1021 2021 

5 89 3 55 
1.46 0.42 
0.40 0.28 

(0 08) 0 ,08 
(0 29) (0.03) 

1 83 
HO 5 69 



Bajaj Flnserv Direct limited 

Notes to flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

'2!!.211 m eaailon of ilio5C15 

Category of assets 
Quoted value 
Non quoted value 
Insurer managed runds 
Grand Total 

San 1t ll lvll!1 Analysis 

A.~ ru J1 Morch A' n1 31 Miu c: h 
20ll 2021 

7 40 
7.40 

5.69 
5,89 

Gr\ll111l)I' is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefils is typically less sensilive to small changes in demographic assumptions The key actuarial 
n55Umr.iUqn~ lo which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensilive lo are discount rate and ruture salary escalation rate The rollowing table summarizes the 
lmpoat in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation al lhe end of the reporting period arising on account or an increase or decrease in lhe reported 
as;,;umptltm by 50 basis points 

Sen ior staff 
Impact of increase in 50 bps on 080 
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 

Junior staff 
Impact of increase in 50 ~on 090 
lrnrroCI 01 ~""'"""° In 60 hoo on ODO 

As at 31 March 2022 
Discount 

rate 

-319% 
3 36% 

-321% 
33~ 

Salary escalation 
nne 

3 20% 
-3 07% 

3 28% 
-J ,1Gl!. 

Ao 01 31 MoJ<h 2021 
Discount Salary i!cscnlRllon 

rate mte 

-3,38% 
3 58% 

-3.65% 
3.BB'JI. 

These sensitivities have been calculated Lo show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market condilions 
at the accounting dale~ There have been no changes rrom the previous periods in lhe methods end assumptions used in preparing the sensilivily analyses. 

f unding arrangement and policy 

The money contributed by the Company to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested 
The trustees of the plan have outsourr:ed the investment management or the fund lo an insurance company The insurance company in turn manages these funds as 
per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescrib~d in the insurance regulations 
There is no compulsion on lhe part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan. The Company's philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity 
and tax position as well as level of under funding of the plan 
The expected contribution payable to the plan next year is f 5000000 

Projected plan cash flow 

The table below shows lhe expected cash now profile or the benefits to bo oaitl ID !he c.u1ren! m~mbe,rnittln ot lhft °'on· 

31 March 20 
Senior staff 
Junior staff 

31 March 2021 
Senior staff 
Junior staff 

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 

Senior Staff 
Junior Staff 

Prlncloo t Acturu-lnl An umr:i l lone <Exntessod Ill Woltihlud Avernne S"I 

Discount rate (pa ) 
Salary escalation rate (pa.) - senior staff 
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) - iunior staff 

Less than 
a vnar 

0 42 
0 21 

0 30 
013 

Between 1 - 2 Between 2 -5 
VltAfli Vllnrs 

0 45 1 30 
0 28 0 BS 

0,30 118 
0.15 0.61 

Over6 
voa no 

4.34 
2,59 

4.75 
2 ,22 

As at 31 March 
2022 

6 54 
6 80 

7 25% 
12 00% 
1050% 

Total 

6 51 
3,93 

6 ,53 
3 ,11 

As al 31 March 
2021 

6 ,96 
7 ,52 

6 80% 
11.77% 

9.60% 

The estima1es of rulure salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account. innation, seniority, promotions and o1her relevan1 ractors, such es 
demand and supply in the employment market 

Compensated absences 

The compensated absences cover the Company's liability for casual and earned leave. 

The liability for accumulated leave which Is eUglble for encashment within the same calender year is provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed leave 
rui1q-noe as m lha bal.ooeo ah.001 ds1.a 

A• DI l1 Mo r(jtl ~ n1 ::>1 March 
1022 2021 

t1d to ~aollfod 0 .75 0.37 

Provident fund 

110 t Q'ore) 

j.Parthm1ars 

JPOO!lon fund no.Id to nownunent ouU.ontius 
PrDYlderi! lutMil pakt lo govemmeol 8u!l1or!lios 

AJJ w. 31 M111ch -~ o:1t 31 Mruc:1, 
2022 2021 

2.ao 1--24 
0 ,00 O.OS 



Bajaj Finserv Direcl Limited 

Notes to financial slalemcnts for lhe yenr ended 31 Mardi 2022 

28 Segment informalion 

The Comp;in) operates in onl) one opcra1i11g business scgmcnl 'iz Distribution of llnancial producls The Compan) is opcraling i11 onl) one geographical area ie do111cslic According!) 1he1c is onl) 011c reportable business scgmenl~ hence segment 
reporting docs 110\ npply 10 the Compan) 



Bojaj FllQerv Direct Limil•d 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

29 Disclosure or transactions with related oarties as reauired bv Ind AS 24 

Part-I 

Name of related party and nature or relationship 

A Holding company: 

Bajaj Finserv Lid (Holding company) 

B SubridU.ri~ and: rellow subsidiary: 
Baiai A11ianz General Insurance Co Ltd 
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Bajaj AJlianz Life Insurance Co Ud 
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Baiai Finance Ltd 
(fellow subsidiarv) 

Baiai Housirut Finance Ltd 
(Subsidiarv of Fellow subsidiarv. Baiai Finance Ltd) 

Baiai HoldinR and Investment Ltd 
(Fellow subsidiarv) 

Baiai Finserv Health Ltd 
(Fellow subsidiarv) 

Nature o! t.rinnr;:ilon 

Contribution to equity (25,00,000 sbares of' 10 each) 

Deemed eciuitv contribution 
Protection fee for brand usage paid (31 March 2022 : NIL: 3 L March 2021 : ' 6066) 

Prooertv. olants and oauit>ments ourchased 
Business suooort charges 

1r31.lra.rlir1'~ DD.id ltmilrds~l .i.:=.cidmt.nnd ~ insi.rmnoe 
l:nsnr.un::s: cvmrm.Siion n:ia:rn'Cd' 
Insurance Claim received. 

Insurance oremium oaid towards im>UD tenn life insurance 
lnstlrallce commission received 

Contribution to eouitv (6.20.000 sbares oH 10 each) 
Deemed equity contribution 
Income from distribution of third oartv products 
Manp<m:er supply services 
Income from Tech Platform 
Subvention expense 

Prooertv. plants~ eQUioments ourchased 
Business SUDOOrt chare:es 
Pronertv. plants and eQU.ioments sold 
Other reimbuI3CJJlent 

Income from distribution of third oartv oroduct! 
Prooertv. plants and eouipments purchased (31 March 22: ~ 12.970. 31 March 21: '6.500) 
Reimbursement 

Other reimbursement 

Business suooort chames received 

C Individuals controllin2 votine. power I exercisin2 siS!llificant inOuence and their relatives: 
Rakesh lnduorasad Bhatt (Director) Remuneration 

AU above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms' length basis 

ll March ?JJJ.! 

Transaction Value 

346.94 

0.34 
13.46 

1.54 
1.44 

5.68 
0.32 

0 62 
28047 

69 97 
36,68 

75 47 

0 06 
I 32 
0 33 
0 06 

I 09 

0 01 

0 24 

4 43 

Outstanding amounts carried in 
the Balance Sheet 

2.50 

522.94 

0.05 

0.95 

0,02 

0.90 
0,03 

0 62 
280 47 
II 02 
4 79 

8 57 

0.33 
0.68 

0.68 

In~ c.-ore 

31 i\t.itnti !D?I 
Transaction Value 

51 IO 

12 49 

I 21 
2 14 
0 08 

2 16 
0-22 

38 76 
27 04 
24.21 

0 07 
0 14 
I 07 
0 09 

0.09 

O.o7 

2 90 

Outstanding amounts carried in 
the Balance Sb~t 

2 50 

176 10 

0.89 
0.23 

0.14 

0.41 
0.01 

9.02 
2.41 

28.56 
0.01 
0.03 

0 74 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

30 Financial risk management 

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is managed through a risk management framework, including 
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring subject to risk limits and other controls. The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk. 

Risk 
Credit risk 

Liquidity Risk 

Exposure Arising from 
Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost and fair value 
through profit or loss 

Trade receivables 

Other liabilities 

Measurement 
Credit ratings 

Credit Limit & 
Aging analysis 

Maturity 
analysis 

Management 
Setting limits on the amount of acceptable risk, 
diversification of investment limits, dealing with 
creditworthy counterparties only 

No. of overdue days, monitoring of credit limits 

Maintaining sufficient cash/cash equivalents and 
marketable securities 

The Board of Directors provide guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as, credit risk, liquidity risk, 
and investment of available funds. 

A. Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations leading to a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk primarily 
arises from cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and trade 
receivables. 

Credit Risk Management 
In regard to Trade receivables, which are typically unsecured, credit risk is managed through continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers 
in the normal course of business. Trade receivables consist of regulated entities with stringent regulation on solvency which significantly mitigates credit 
risk. 

For other financial assets the Company has an investment policy which allows the Company to invest only with counterparties having a credit rating equal 
to or above AA+ and Pl+. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these counterparties on an on-going basis. 

B. Liquidity Risk 
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are funds infusion from holding company, 'cash and cash equivalents' and cash flows that are generated 
from operations. The Company believes that its working capital is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities within maturity period. 

C. Other risk (Market Risk) 
The Company has deployed its surplus funds in debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market instruments. The Company is 
exposed to price risk on such investments; which arises on account of movement in interest rates, liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities. 
The Company has invested its surplus funds primarily in debt instruments mutual funds with AAA & STABLE Al+ rating and thus the Company does not 
have significant risk exposure here. 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

31 Capital management 

Risk management 

The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity, The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital 
requirements, 

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market 
instruments depending on economic conditions in line with the guidelines set out by the management. Safety of capital is of prime 
importance to ensure availability of capital for operations. Investment objective is to provide safety and adequate return on the surplus 
funds. 
The following table summerizes the net capital position of the Company: 

Equity 
Less: Tangible and other assets 

Working capital 
Investments 

31 March 2022 

Inf crore 

652 97 
96.93 
28.48 

527.56 

31 March 2021 

Inf crore 

109.22 
78.57 

9 56 
21.09 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

32 Fair value measurement 

i) Financial instruments by category 
In 'l <" rorc 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Amortised Amortised 

FVTPL FVOCI Cost FVTPL FVOCI Cost 
Financial assets 
Investments 

- Liauid mutual funds 527.56 - - 2 1.09 - -
Trade receivables - 32.62 - 40.87 
Other financial assets - - 3,83 - - 1.36 
Cash and cash equivalents - - 38.08 - 2,60 
Total financial assets 527.56 - 74.53 21.09 - 44.83 

Financial liabilities 
Lease liabilitv - - 20.63 - - 4.62 
Trade payables - - 8.68 - - 4.57 
Other financial liabilities - - 39.40 - - 15.49 
Total finandal liabilities - - 68.71 - - 24.68 



Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited 

Notes tO 11nancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

ii) Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in dete1111i11i11g the fair values of the financial instiuments that are (a) 1ecognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at ammtised cost and f01 which fai1 values a1e disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an indication about the teliabilily of the inputs used in detennining 
fai1 value, the Company has c1assified its financial instnnnents into the three levels presciibed unde1· the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath 
the table. 

Flnnncinl assets mrnsm•rd at roiir value .. rerure•ine. fair value measurements at 31 March 2022 
Particulars Notes 

Financial investments at FVTPL 
- Liouid mutual funds 4 

Total financial assets 

Financial assets measured at fair value - rerurriH!! rair \1a lu r. m t'itSnnnni:nl.!1 nl J I M inch 2011 
Particulars 

Fjnancial inveshnents at FVPL 
- Liquid mutual funds 

Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 

There have been no h ansfers between Level I and Level 2 

111e value of other financial assets is same as their fai1' value~ 

Vnlunrlnn~ 

Notes 

4 

Level I 

527 56 
527.56 

Level I 

21 09 
. 

21.09 

In ~ crore 

Level 2 Level 3 Total 

527 ,56 

- - 527.56 

In f crore 

Lc\lcll L,cvcl 3 T u1:1l 

- 21.09 
. . 
. . 21.09 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to a·ansfer a liability in an orde1 ly h·ansaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the 
measuiement date under cmTent market conditions (i.e, an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. 

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as explained below 

Level 1: Level l hierarchy includes financial inshuments measured using quoted pl'ices in active markets, Quotes would incJude rates/values/valuation references published 
periodically by BSE, NSE etc. basis which trades take place in a linked 01 unlinked active market. This includes traded bonds and mutual funds, as the case may be, that have 
quoted price/rate/value 

Level 2: The fair value of financial inshurnents that are not TI aded in an active market are dete1mined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market 
data (either directly as piices 01 indirectly deiived from prices) and 1ely as little as possible on entity-speci11c estimates. If all signi11cant inputs required to fair value an 
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2, 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, This is the case for unlisted equity secuiities, 
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

VuJm\tion Tcchn lquo.~ u.rced (O d C' tt rrnir•<" r11ir vnlur. 
Valuation Techniques used to detennine fail value include 

- Open ended mutual funds at NA V's/rates declared and/or quoted 
- Close ended mutual funds at NA V's declared by AMF! 
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33 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 
Inf crore 

As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Particulars 
Assets 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Other financial assets 

Other non-current assets 

Current assets 

Financial assets 

Investments 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 

Provisions 

Total 

Net 

Within 12 months 

527.56 

32.62 

38.08 

1.37 

17.74 

617.37 

6.42 

8.68 

39.40 

8.82 

0.75 

64.07 

553.30 

After 12 months 

31.60 

73.26 

2.46 

3.82 

111.14 

14.21 

14.21 

96.93 

Within 12 months 

21.09 

40.87 

2.60 

8.85 

73.41 

2.06 

4.57 

15.49 

21.83 

0.37 

44.32 

29.09 

After 12 months 

10.80 

67.64 

1.36 

1.33 

81.13 

2.56 

2.56 

78.57 



Bajaj Finserv Direr! Limited 
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34 Share-based payments (Employee option plan) 

The Company has adopted the employees stock options plan, 2018 (ESOP Scheme) fonnulated by its Holding company, Bajaj Finserv Ltd., fo1 its employees and 
employees of its subsidial'ies, pursuant to the special resolulion passed by shareholde1s at the annual general meeting held on 16 July 20 I 8 The employee stock option plan 
is designed to provide incentives to the employees of the company to deliver long-Lenn 1eturns and is an equity settled plan The ESOP Scheme is administe1ed by the the 
Board_ Pa1iicipation in the plan is at the Boatds1s disc1etion and no individual has a contractual l'ight to pai1icipate in the plan or to receive any guai'anteed benefits_ Options 
gianted under ESOP scheme would vest in not less than one year and not more than fou1 years from the date of giant of the options, The Bowd of the company has 
app1oved grant with related vesting conditions Vesting of the options would be subject to continuous employment with the company and hence the options would vest 
with passage of time. In addition to this, the Boaid may also specify certain perfonnance parameters subject to which the options would vest, Such options would vest 
when the pe1fo11nance parameters are met Fair value of options is reimbmsed to the Holding company amounting to Rs 9 54 crs. which is am011ised over the vesting 
period. 

Once vested, the options remain exercisable fo1 a pe1 iod of one yea1. Options granted under the plan are for no conside1 ation and carry no dividend or voting rights. On 
exercise, each option is convertible into one equity share of the Holding company. 

801 om halow if'i n summmy ol"opti('lillS grnntcd uudc1· the pion· 

Particulars 

Opening balance 

Granted during the year 

Excercised du1 ing the year 

T'orfcitcd during the year 

Closing balance 

Vested and excercisable 

No options expiied during the year~ 

Fair value or options granted 

Tranche I 

31 March 2022 31 Morch 2021 

Number of options Number or options 

39,175 12,850 

27,550 

19,888 

3,976 1,225 

15,311 39,175 

The fai1' value at grant date of options granted on 16 May 2019 was ~ I, 771 per option, The fair value at grant date is detennined using the Black Scholes model which 
takes into account the exercise price, the tenn of the option, the share p1ice at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the 
iisk fiee interest rate for the tenn of the option . 

Tranche II 
111e fair value at grant date of options granted on 21 May 2020 was ~ 1,597 pe1 option. The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which 
takes into account the exe1 cise price, the tenn of the option, the shru e price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the 
risk free interest rate for the tenn of the option. 

Tranche III 
The fair value at grant date of options granted on 28 April 2021 was ~ 3,542 pe1 option, The fair value at grant date is detennined using the Black Scholes model which 
takes into account the exercise price, the tenn of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the 
risk free interest rate for the term of the option. 

The model inputs for options granted are as under : 

Tranche I Tranche II Tranche Ill 

a) options are granted for no consideration and vesting period is: 4 years 4 years 4 years 

b) exercise price: ~ 7,454.70 per option ~ 4,702.05 per option ~ 10,091.35 per option 
c) grant date: 16 May 2019 21May2020 28 April 202 l 

d) expiry date: 15 May 2023 20 May 2024 28 April 2025 

e) share price at grant date: n,61745 ~ 4,702 ,05 ~ 10,091.35 

f) expected price volatility of the Company's shares: 30,40% 35,56% 36.77% 

g) expected dividend yield: 0.02% 0.05% 0.05% 

h) risk-free interest rate: 7.56% 6 35% 6.62% 

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future 

volatility due to publicly available information 



Bajaj li'inserv Direcl Limiled 

Notes lo financial stalemcnls for the yea1· ended 31 March 2022 

35 Lease 

Asnlcsscc 
Jnd AS 11(1 - Lc;iscs hnd become c1pplic<1blc cITccli\ c aum1al rcpor1i11g period beginning April I. 2019 The Compan) had adop!cd 1hc s1u11dard beginning April I, 2019 using !he modified rc1rospcclh c approach for 1r.111sitio11 

F11r1hcr. as agai11s1 J~sc p.1) rncnls of~ ..i 55 crorc (pre\ ious )Cart 2 :n crorc) lhc Comp;m) has rccogni1:cd t I 2(, crorc (pre\ ious )Car~ () 56 crorc) us Fimrncc cosls and ~ .J- l.J- crorc (pre\ ious )Car~ 2 00 crorc) :unor1ii'~llio11 of Righi 10 use ;isscls 
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36 Ad1li1lnu1il Jtrgulntnrv ll i!<IU f,l!m~tll~ 

I) Rallu~ 

(11 \ R.:tum on Equity Ralio 

Ml T!'lldc payabl!!t tumcwer nilio 

j~~ P:d aipit.al tumoYCr rttio 

(I) NloO I prnllt rwlio 
lwJ R<\urn..,c.p!<al~ 

(h i ltct1 .. 1 ('11 hrn~u1cn1 

CulTCfllAssels 

N.:tlncome 

Re¥CllUQ 

Purdlacl ofwervloes und olhcr ~ 

Nctprofil 
Ramin& befoni lnl.Cnllt md \&.'C 

Eamir"W bcbc inlcrat ~ tax 

U.~t1t1ml111thH 

SIUII'dwldcr'I Equity 

AYt:rnge KCOUnls NCeivable 

Aw:nge KCUUnLI pi)'llble 

Wmi:in1 Capital 

Net.RICI 
~ .. , anplOj«I (Tolal AmW 
CUl"l'tnlLiabllilica\ 
A~ OpmlitlJ aactl 

(0 13) 

'" 
2047 

0)7 

(O<l) 

(0 IJ) 

(012) 

Debi Equily, Deb! Service and lm-enlory Tu~ nuios are n011pplicable lo lhe Company, hence nol lrn:luded lho aforesaid dlsclosure 

II) Rtlallonshlp with 1truck off comp11nln 
C:umnl~t-u 

Pr\•1laut 'to•• 

Nn. 

NII 

Balance oul!llandlng 
(t1 t rnn • 

Oalunl!c otJl.lilMIUna 

ll!l lllllfln(Mp wilh1l1c 
ll l\IC'k Urf ~' DIU LU)\' 

ltc.l1ufom1hi11 wUh llat! 
U'\IC" nrf C~IOl llUI\' 

I ''"' 117.J"IC 11 1.aG'~ 111 111,n.4t tW11!• l11M tc:it1lt~\l 1111hc 
~r1oi~ of the rntio 

(0 41) -6~ lncfl2SC in IOSSICI hiu lcJ lo lhe ~line in lhc rulio 

4.14 34" DeU,er~ofduc:shuresultetlin1hc 
ifll'Dl'OW(rlCl'ltoflhe relio 

10.69 91" Oel.Lerulililllion of credit period hu .-.uhcJ in Ute 
imoruYemenl ofthe r.tio 

3 27 -m h1c:rmK in M>Tkinc a.ipilal duo 10 intlWISDJ 

(04') -211 

in't'Clt.menls in mutual funds hu led lo d«linc in 
lher.tio 

(0 39) -UW. hlCfCllllC in lOIXI ha kid to the decline in lhe ~lo 

(0 301. ~ Inel'CllllC i11 loaes has kd to the decline in the ndlo 
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Notes to flnanciAI statemenls for the ye11r ended 31 Mnrch 2022 

37 Social Strurify Codt 

Tite Indian Pnrlinmenl has approved lho Code on Social Securily, 2020 which £1.Jbsumcs lhc Pnn•idcnt Fund and lhe Omluily Acl 11ind mies I here under 1lte MiniSlry or Labour and Employment has also n:lcu:d dran rules thereunder on IJ 
No\'ember 2020, and has invited suggestions rrom Slakcholdcrs which a~ under acti\'c considcnuion by lhc Ministry The Comp1ny will evaluate the rules.. assess lhe impacl, ir any, and eccounl ror the same 011~ the rules ;:ire nolHicd and become 
etreeii\-e 

38 Co111 luur.111 ll• hllhlt.< A1111t 
31 Mon:h 2022 31M•rch2021 

In' orore In 'cront 
Claims DAAinst the Companv nol aclmowled~ as debts 0.02 

The Company lw received!' letler from legal metrology dcpanmcmt, alleglng non-campliancc to Legal Mctrology rules The Company has amlendcd lo the authorllics lhal Ille afoJUaid rules are duly followed 

39 There 111n1 no proceedings which Ile\~ been h1lliated or are pending against IM company for holding any benami property under lhe Bcnaml Tnrnsaclions (Prohibition) Ac:t, 1918 (~'of 1988) and lhe rules made tlieminder 

40 Previous ~r's frgur=i hlnoe been iqrouped ind rearnngcd whc:mu nec::ea;ary 10 cooflnn to currcnl ~~r's pre1enlaliorJclassiOcation. 

In tCnn$ of our report of~ date 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accounlanls 
ICA! Firm Registmlion ':lumber: 105146WIWI00621 

VinitKJain 
Parmer 
ICAI Mcmbcnhip Number. 145911 

M~SA!!;·: 25 April 2022 

On behalf oflho Boan! ofDinictors 

At~ 
ll~J 1•111.:i. 11cc 
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